MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE HYRUM CITY PLANNING COMMISSION HELD AUGUST 8, 2024 AT THE HYRUM CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 60 WEST MAIN, HYRUM, UTAH.

CONVENED: 6:30 P.M.

CONDUCTING: Vice Chairman Angi Bair

PRESENT: Vice Chairman Angi Bair, Commissioners Blake Foster, Stephen Nelson, Paul Willardson, and Alternate Member Averie Wheeler.

EXCUSED: Chairman Brian Carver

CALL TO ORDER: There being five present and five representing a quorum, Vice Chairman Angi Bair called the meeting to order.

OTHERS PRESENT: Zoning Administrator Matt Holmes and 20 citizens. Secretary Shara Toone recorded the minutes.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Commissioner Averie Wheeler led the governing body and the citizens in the Pledge of Allegiance.

INVOCATION: Paul Willardson

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

The minutes of a regular meeting held on June 13, 2024 were approved as written.

ACTION Averie Wheeler made a motion to approve the minutes of June 13, 2024 as written. Commissioner Blake Foster seconded the motion and Commissioners Bair, Nelson, Wheeler, and Willardson voted aye.

AGENDA APPROVAL:

A copy of the notice and agenda for this meeting was posted on the Utah Public Notice Website and Hyrum City's website, distributed to each member of the Planning Commission, and posted at the City Offices more than forty-eight hours before meeting time.

ACTION Commissioner Stephen Nelson made a motion to approve the agenda for August 8, 2024 as written. Commissioner Paul Willardson seconded the motion and Commissioners Bair, Nelson, Wheeler, and Willardson voted aye.

6. SCHEDULED DELEGATIONS

- A. <u>Luis Ayala-Trujillo</u>- Seeking a setback exception for an accessory structure behind the main dwelling.
- B. <u>William Hadfield</u>- Seeking a setback exception for a pole barn accessory structure to be placed in front of the main dwelling.
- C. <u>Shania Laird</u>- Seeking approval for two shipping containers that exceed the typical 140 square feet maximum.

SCHEDULED DELEGATIONS:

LUIS AYALA-TRUJILLO- SEEKING A SETBACK EXCEPTION FOR AN ACCESSORY STRUCTURE BEHIND THE MAIN DWELLING.

Luis Ayala said they have a roof that they built recently. He said they would like to repurpose it to be a dining room, since their house lacks one. He said no excavation is needed, and they won't need to touch any utilities.

Averie Wheeler asked if they are enclosing the existing patio, and if the problem is the setback.

Zoning Administrator Matt Holmes said there are a couple of issues. He said the structure is too close to the house. He said they were asking to enclose it to have an outdoor dining area and to cut down on wind. He added the issues are it's too close to the house, but it can't be added to the house, because that puts the house beyond the 30' setback.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson asked if it is attached to the house.

Zoning Administrator Matt Holmes said it's not attached, but it is really close to the house.

Commissioner Paul Willardson asked if there is a door between the two structures.

Zoning Administrator Matt Holmes said there is an outside glass door that leads down to the patio. He said currently, it is a patio with a roof over it.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson said the fire code requires structures to be 10' apart, unless there is special insulation and firewalls that are put in place. He asked if that is part of the proposal.

Luis Ayala said he didn't know about that. He said they will do whatever is required.

Commissioner Blake Foster asked how long the patio has been there.

Luis Ayala said four years.

Vice Chairman Angi Bair asked if they want to fully enclose it or just enclose two or three sides.

Luis Ayala said it will be fully enclosed.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson asked if it will be fully enclosed, but not attached to the home.

Commissioner Averie Wheeler said it is an accessory building, but it doesn't meet those standards.

Luis Ayala asked what is needed.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson asked if they plan to run electricity to it.

Luis Ayala said they are planning to run electricity to it and they want to know what they need to do to make it work.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson said the standard from 17.28.40 for yard regulations under subsection F reads, "All other accessory buildings (i.e. sheds, barns, etc.) shall be emplaced at least ten (10) feet to the rear of the main building and have minimum side and rear lot line setbacks of one (1) foot from the roof edge. Persons wishing to deviate from this standard may seek exception by presenting a design for review to the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission will consider structure design, landscaping, proximity to neighboring dwellings, and other pertinent data." He said the Planning Commission needs to consider whether or not they have a design sufficiently

presented to them to meet the standard of code, and if there's constructional design, landscaping, proximity to neighboring dwellings, or other pertinent data that should affect their recommendation. He said he's not concerned with the impact on neighbors, but he is concerned with fire code, building code and drainage problems. He said he would like to see how the wires are going to be brought to this structure and how they plan to ensure the firewalls are sufficient to meet the standard.

Commissioner Paul Willardson said as it stands right now, it's not meeting code. He said they are taking something already out of code and asking to make an exception. He said he doesn't think they should continue breaking code.

Commissioner Averie Wheeler asked if Luis would consider a second space for the dining room, instead of trying to make this space work. She said if he put it off to the side and attached it, he would have more control and meet codes.

Luis Ayala said they are not looking to do that. He said if it's not possible to take the existing space and turn it into a dining room, then they want to keep it as is.

Commissioner Averie Wheeler said she's not sure how they can do it and meet code.

Vice Chairman Angi Bair said if they do address the fire code, etc. it wouldn't adversely affect the neighbors, but they don't have a plan to show how they would finish it.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson said there isn't sufficient design data for him to consider if they will be able to meet fire building code.

Commissioner Averie Wheeler said if they could see blueprints on what they are planning to build, with wiring and insulation plans, they could look at it and give them an exception for that 10' space.

Luis Ayala asked if it would be easier if they attached it.

The Planning Commission answered that it would be worse.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson said before he wouldn't be able to say yes until he could ensure that the design and standards would be able to fit with fire code. Vice Chairman Angi Bair asked how close to the house it would be.

Luis Ayala asked if 10' is the requirement.

Commissioner Averie Wheeler said 10' from the back of the house to the front of an accessory building is the minimum requirement. She said they want to see plans with electrical and fire hazard plans.

Vice Chairman Angi Bair said they would also like to see how close to the house the accessory building is.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson said they need more details. He asked how tall the structure is.

Zoning Administrator Matt Holmes said it is 12-13'.

Commissioner Averie Wheeler asked if they could look into making up some blueprints with more details.

Luis Ayala said he is not interested in doing that right now.

ACTION Commissioner Paul Willardson made a motion to deny a setback exception for an accessory structure behind the main dwelling, based on the lack of design plans. Commissioner Stephen Nelson seconded the motion and Commissioners Bair, Nelson, Wheeler, and Willardson voted aye.

WILLIAM HADFIELD- SEEKING A SETBACK EXCEPTION FOR A POLE BARN ACCESSORY STRUCTURE TO BE PLACED IN FRONT OF THE MAIN DWELLING.

ACTION Commissioner Stephen Nelson made a motion to postpone the approval of a setback exception for a pole barn accessory structure to be placed in front of the main dwelling. Commissioner Blake Foster seconded the motion and Commissioners Bair, Nelson, Wheeler, and Willardson voted aye.

SHANIA LAIRD- SEEKING APPROVAL FOR TWO SHIPPING CONTAINERS THAT EXCEED THE TYPICAL 140 SQUARE FEET MAXIMUM.

Ray Collatz said they've filled in the irrigation ditch and put piping in. He added it's now covered with gravel. He said there are two shipping containers on the property that they use for storage. He said they would like to attach a cover and use it for covered parking.

Commissioner Paul Willardson asked where the canal runs.

Ray Collatz said the canal is gone, it is piped. He added it runs through the other property.

Commissioner Paul Willardson asked if they still have an easement to maintain a pipeline.

Ray Collatz answered yes.

Commissioner Paul Willardson asked if the pipeline runs underneath his shed.

Ray Collatz said it does not. He added the nice thing about the structure is that it is not permanent, it weighs enough that it will hold up against weather, and it is brand new. He said he paid to have 4-5' feet of material brought in, packed and leveled.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson asked if they have a timeframe or if they plan on keeping them there permanently.

Ray Collatz said it all depends. He said he doesn't know if this is going to be their permanent home.

Shania Laird said they plan to be here another year and a half.

Ray Collatz said the nice thing about the containers is they can be hauled off at any time. The structure he wants to buy is easy to put up and take down. He said the shipping units are completely sealed, and they are brand new, so they aren't an eyesore.

Commissioner Blake Foster asked what the other structure is.

Ray Collatz said it is a Quonset.

Shania Laird said it's not tall enough to park in.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson asked if there is a wire fence along the back.

Ray Collatz said he tore everything out and put up two 10' farm gates.

Commissioner Blake Foster asked if the gates are between the storage containers.

Ray Collatz said there is a sewer line that runs through the property. He said they made it so that it is easily accessible.

Shania Laird said the gates are not touching the storage containers.

Ray Collatz said he set them back at the property line, and the gates are about 5' from the rear property line.

Commissioner Blake Foster asked if there is a wind rating on the cover.

Ray Collatz said he doesn't have that information with him, but he did his research, and it meets the wind rating and snow load for the area. He said each container weighs 9,000 lbs. and the way the cover mounts to the container is very solid.

Commissioner Averie Wheeler said the things they need to consider are the size and the impact on the neighbors and she doesn't see any concerns.

Commissioner Blake Foster asked what the maximum size allowed by Hyrum City is.

Commissioner Averie Wheeler answered 140' and these are 320'.

Vice Chairman Angi Bair asked the size of the total lot.

Shania Laird said the lot is just under 0.5 acres, with what they own now. She added it will be just over 1 acre with the land they are trying to acquire.

ACTION Commissioner Averie Wheeler made a motion to approve the exception to two shipping containers that exceed the typical 140 square feet maximum, with no conditions. Commissioner Blake Foster seconded the motion and Commissioners Bair, Nelson, Wheeler, and Willardson voted aye.

OTHER BUSINESS:

ANNETTE FRANCIS- TO DISCUSS THE CONCEPT OF A SITE PLAN AS WELL AS CITY CODE REGARDING SENIOR HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS. AS A DISCUSSION, THERE MAY BE RECOMMENDATIONS BUT NO DECSION.

Craig Rasmussen said there is a second plan with some changes and improvements that he doesn't think the Planning Commission has seen. He said after submitting the first plan to Hyrum City staff, Annette met with UDOT and there were other things that the state wanted to see. He explained he got involved when Annette went to the City Council asking about what the City Council thought about some of the things she was proposing for a downtown commercial area. He said Hyrum City ordinances need to be reviewed because they are outdated and flawed. He went on to say that it's been a while since Hyrum City has had the opportunity to build a downtown commercial development, and the City Council is excited about the proposal. He said it will probably be a long time before they have more downtown commercial development, so they need to take advantage of this opportunity and do it right, so they can have a little pocket of commercial area downtown. He said he is encouraging them to focus on what they can do to proceed in a way that everyone comes away a winner. He said Hyrum City ordinances are not perfect and need to be looked at. He said there is a big need for senior housing, something people can live in short term without needing to purchase. He said he would like to see that incorporated in Annette's plan.

Annette Francis said she is going to turn the time over to Kyle. She said Kyle is someone that she has hired to help her through the process.

Kyle Barney said he is a Hyrum resident, and this is a unique opportunity. He said they have been working with Matt facilitating and implementing the feedback that he has given

them. He said they are trying to put together a project that aligns with the unique historical character of Hyrum. He said this is a commercial project, and they would like it to be treated as such. He said the residential part of it is incidental and there has been some back and forth with Matt on multifamily and what not.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson asked if he could explain what that means.

Kyle Barney said it is a mixed-use development, and it is under C2 zoning. He said it is primarily commercial and there are several buildings in the plan. He said because of present mixed-use requirements in C2 zoning, there are a few properties with residential apartments on the top floor, but this is primarily a commercial development, so there is a number of various office buildings.

Nik Kohler said there are two two-story buildings in the very back that has the mixed-use residential units on top. He added that everything on the main level is commercial. He said it's not fully maxed out, but they did try and get the developer and the city as much usable and rentable square footage.

Kyle Barney said the C2 zone does not allow residential units on the main floor, and that was the problem with the original senior housing proposal. He said if the code changes, they are open to including that in the site plan.

Craig Rasmussen said senior housing facilities are a permitted use in this zone, but to meet the conditions a checklist must be completed to get a conditional use permit for something that is a permitted use in that zone. He said that does not make any sense. He said he sent Matt some redlines on what he thinks is a good start on what can be done to adjust that section of the ordinance.

Kyle Barney asked Nik to go from building to building and give a general overview.

Nik Kohler said the way they have labeled it is buildings 1-9 are commercial. Some of the buildings have more than one suite, and there are a total of six buildings. He said after the UDOT meeting, they decided to move the access to the center of the lot, so they are asking for a variance, and they would move commercial building one back as close to the sidewalk and the street as Hyrum City would allow. He said

there is a drive-through center lane down the center easement and that gives access to buildings 2,3,4,5, and 6 for that main floor level. On the opposite side of parking buildings 7,8, and 9, provide access to overflow parking, where they maxed it out. He said they are showing a total of 59 parking stalls if required, and they provided extra floor plans to spell out what they are thinking for the upper floor suites. They made sure to accommodate parking spots for tenants.

Kyle Barney said this isn't a formal site plan submission. They are looking for a general sense of approval that the Planning Commission is on board with the idea. He said they want to know any real concerns that the Planning Commission may have, and things that they might want to see on the site plan.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson asked how they plan on policing the housing to ensure that it is senior housing.

Kyle Barney said the senior housing is not currently in the plan. He said if the code is updated on before the official site plan is submitted then they will move forward with that.

Annette Francis said there are deed restrictions made in other cities. She said she has looked at applying for grants, but she wants to avoid grants so that everyone is eligible, not just a certain few. The biggest goal is for senior housing to be on a deed restriction (55 and older) unless Hyrum City changes the deed. She said according to her research, deed restrictions protect senior housing.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson said if she does move forward with the senior housing it wouldn't be ADA accessible.

Annette Francis said there is no senior housing because Hyrum City has made it impossible for seniors to live in Hyrum.

Kyle Barney said the mixed-use restrictions in C2 specify that residential can only be on the second floor or higher, so that's why there isn't senior housing on the first floor.

Annette Francis said code also states that it would need to be owner occupied. She said she bought the property because it allowed senior housing. She engineered the plans and to have it owner occupied, with her mom living there, but her mom's health changed in the time of the process. She said that's why a rental needs to be an option for seniors to come and go as their health permits.

Annalise Netzley said she has lived in Hyrum since she was four years old. She is 31, and she has been trying to find affordable housing to be able to live alone. She said a few months ago, she had to move back in with her parents. She said it would be very beneficial to find a place that is affordable.

Vice Chairman Angi Bair said she is confused. She clarified that the plan is six commercial buildings. Two of those buildings will have apartments upstairs with commercial space on the bottom, and that is permitted use in C2. She said that is not an issue. She asked if they are asking them to consider revising the code so that the two apartment buildings can switch to senior housing and have main floor living.

Kyle Barney and Annette Francis answered no.

Vice Chairman Angi Bair said that is where she is confused.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson said he would echo that. He said he is unsure what they are asking for. He said they are asking them to review the code, but also review the development that is permitted.

Craig Rasmussen said he thinks they would like at least one more building. He said from what he understands they want to add a fourplex, single story house that has four units in it.

Annette Francis said she did a presentation 2.5 years ago to try and recognize senior independent living. She said she bought this property and was going to build a unit on each side. When she first proposed it to Matt, he said that if she pulled it as a residential permit she could rent it to unrelated persons. She said she spent money on engineering and when she came in to get the permit, he said it has four kitchens so it would be considered a multifamily unit. This was why she let go of the idea of senior housing. She said the reason that they are back here is the neighbors found out that she wasn't allowed to do that, and they wished she could. They went to a City Council meeting to speak up to get her back on the agenda and for the zone to get looked at again. She said she is running out of time for this change unless they really want it. She said she needs to start developing and get some money back. She said if Hyrum

City wants to do what she originally wanted to do, then she is happy to work with them, but she needs Hyrum City's help and they need to work together. She said she brought in a lot of people that care about this project. She added that there are a lot of people hurting financially, especially seniors.

Commissioner Paul Willardson asked them to show him how that would fit into this plan. He asked if it would be on the East side.

Annette Francis said if Hyrum City would allow the different mixed-use, she would keep it commercial and include senior housing, with the commercial part serving the seniors.

Kyle Barney said that's where they need the change because right now, they can't have residential there.

Annette Francis said it has to be rentals. That's the only way she can afford the project. She said Matt said it would have to be owner occupied, but there isn't a senior in the world that would live this way if they could afford a \$600,000.00 build. They would not live with three other seniors, and most likely they wouldn't be interested in being a landlord at that age. She said this project would allow seniors a time of rest for a few years while they live by their kids.

Dan Solomon said he hasn't seen the most recent plan as it has changed many times. He said Annette has tried hard to make this work. She asks the neighbors what they care about. He said he would love this kind of development right next door to them, and it is something that Hyrum City needs. He said that every plan that he has seen has been architecturally appropriate to city ideas and plans.

Travis Allred said this is something that can be done as is. He said the point, as with every development, is to look at what is the best for Hyrum. He said they need to ask if they can use this as a catalyst for some changes that need to take place. He said there are loopholes and things that can be done to make this work, but if you are really going to look at the code and make the appropriate changes, now is the time. He added that this can be used as a catalyst for the future. He said Annette has bigger plans for the city of Hyrum to clean up buildings and help foster people that live here and want their parents close by. He said he thinks there are additional things that can be done for the benefit

of everybody. He said it benefits the developer, but also the community.

Annette Francis said she is here because she can't afford a site plan if there is a risk of it getting denied.

Vice Chairman Angi Bair asked what she is planning on doing.

Annette Francis said she would start with the commercial building with housing above.

Vice Chairman Angi Bair said that is a permitted use. She asked what Annette is wanting to do that is not permitted use.

Annette Francis answered the only thing that is not permitted is she is not allowed to put senior housing in this.

Travis Allred said conditional use takes too long.

Vice Chairman Angi Bair said they have discussed senior housing in all of Annette's projects. She said they are aware that that is a concern. She said they have made several notes and have had meetings about senior housing, but changing code is a huge process.

Annette Francis said she has a solution. She could start with the commercial part of the project. She said she needs to start bringing in money to pay bills.

Commissioner Averie Wheeler asked if Annette would do it in phases, so she can get revenue until Hyrum City can make the changes happen to make it ideal.

Annette Francis said if Hyrum City is opposed or feels this is not doable they need to let her know so she can market and advertise in a way that investors want her project. She said if what she is proposing isn't the most profitable to her, but she lives here and wants something that benefits the community.

Courtney Larsen said he and Annette were discussing concepts that wouldn't be overly expensive in the modern economy. He said they talked about a coffee shop or a little burger shop. He said they are building a commissary kitchen, and they can make all the food from scratch there. It keeps the big trucks from coming in and keeps most of the trash offsite. He said it's a cool neighborhood, and mixed-use areas are always beneficial. He said it could be a hangout spot, and that is something the town needs.

Annette Francis introduced Kaylene Ames. She said Kaylene Ames is on the Wellsville City Council, but she invited her because she spends a lot of time in St. George and has watched their development.

Kaylene Ames said she travels back and forth from St. George and Wellsville. She has a couple of businesses in St. George and the development that Annette is proposing is like one in Santa Clara. She said hundreds of people spend thousands of dollars in that quaint area that looks just like this one. She said the property that she owns is in downtown St. George and it has a commercial salon downstairs with apartments above. She said there isn't enough senior housing.

Travis Allred said they just got the mixed-use code changed in both Logan and North Logan City. He said there are bases on how to adopt and do these things quickly that have been successful that are closer than St. George. He said there is one by Beehive Grill and another one in North Logan on Wolf Pack way. He said this concept is rapidly being adopted by cities in our valley, and he thinks Hyrum City can accommodate that use. He said he thinks those spaces will get used.

Annette Francis introduced Michael Fortune, who started Boxable. She said he is on the Planning Commission for Providence City. She said that as Hyrum City looks at changing code, they should look at consulting with Michael, who has ways of building things cheaper.

Michael Fortune said he met Annette two years ago. He said she wants to improve the community. She has put an emphasis on senior housing. Annette talked to them about new options and things that could be done. He said seniors are being forced out because of fixed incomes and landlords that take advantage of the increase. He said he focuses on veterans and aging veterans. In the last couple of months, they have had seven or eight that have been forced out of their homes. He said this is a great project that will highlight and enhance the city of Hyrum, while helping seniors and the community. He said the code is always changing.

Kyle Barney said they are here to get a vote of confidence and feel out the Planning Commission to see if this is the kind of project that they are willing to work with them on.

Commissioner Averie Wheeler said they have her confidence. She said Hyrum is continually growing, and Hyrum City zoning needs the vision that they are trying to push. She said the code needs updating. She said she is in support of resetting the precedent.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson said his general opinion after reading through C2 zoning is that Hyrum City should open the door for more housing options within that zone. He said having a mixed use and only allowing for single family or duplexes is not real mixed use. He said he thinks reviewing the code and allowing a project like this to move forward would be appropriate and smart. He said these types of developments are in need, and there are a lot of positives with them. He said Annette could phase the project so she can start with some of the beginning projects that are more commercial oriented and give the Planning Commission time to make updates to the code and to make recommendations to the council. He said he thinks they'd be in support of that. He said they can't make any guarantees, but it's worth the debate.

Commissioner Paul Willardson asked what the time frame is.

Annette Francis said she needed to start building three months ago. She can build on the 1/3-acre lot for a while to get funding. She said she became a realtor because she wanted to provide senior housing. She needs it by the end of the year. If she can get the site plan submitted, she can start building and get the infrastructure in before winter and then start getting financed for the next phase. She said she wants to name the development Sunstone Village in honor of Hyrum Young.

Craig Rasmussen said Annette would like two senior fourplex buildings. He said she would like to keep one of the mature trees and reconfigure one of the buildings. He said this can easily be done in different phases. He said changes to the code needs to be looked at for many areas of Hyrum City. He doesn't think they can wait for the general plan update for addressing this senior housing ordinance. He thinks that Hyrum City needs to get rid of permitted use for senior housing because he doesn't think it would trigger multiple family housing. He said there is a separate section for senior housing and that's where it needs to stay. He would like to see the Planning Commission move forward with adjusting the senior housing part of our ordinance, so that Annette can have assurance that she can move forward with this phase.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson asked if there is a reason the other commercial building is up along the frontage.

Annette Francis said they are supposed to be 30' back and that's a variance they might need on the first one. She said there is a tree there that she loves, and she wants to keep it. She said she wasn't sure how many buildings she could get.

Zoning Administrator Matt Holmes said if this is within a specific section of the C2 code, which he thinks it is, there isn't a setback.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson said his preference would be the commercial massing be along the frontage. He thinks that the ordinance states that the parking needs to be located behind.

Craig Rasmussen said that is for multifamily housing. This isn't multifamily housing.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson asked if that's for the C2 zone.

Zoning Administrator Matt Holmes said it's designed so that you don't have parking out by the frontage, you have the businesses out front.

Craig Rasmussen said with the overflow parking in the back, there is plenty of parking. The residents can use the parking further back.

Commissioner Stephen Nelson said he thinks having the businesses up front is more presentable and a better use for this type of development for downtown.

Annette Francis asked Dan how he feels about that.

Dan Solomon said it impacts him because if it is massed in the front, there might be a lot of traffic in front of his house.

Commissioner Paul Willardson asked if this is a design meeting or a planning meeting. He said they are asking for a change of code in three months from a Planning Commission that is made up of volunteers. He said they could make a recommendation that the City Council could reject.

Craig Rasmussen said the City Council sent him here tonight. They are on board with renovating the senior housing.

Commissioner Paul Willardson asked why they are just finding this out now.

Craig Rasmussen said he has been trying to push it for a long time.

Commissioner Paul Willardson asked if it is Craig or City Council pushing for it.

Craig Rasmussen said it was the City Council.

Annette Francis said the mayor is pushing for this to happen as well.

Craig Rasmussen said if parking is an issue, they designed it this way because of UDOT. He said if Dan is worried about parking in front of his house, tell UDOT this may never develop commercially, but we need an access here.

Annette Francis said she has contacted Planning Commission in the past and has been trying to get the code changed. She wants to work with everyone and make it work.

ADJOURNMENT:

ACTION There being no further business before the Planning Commission, the meeting adjourned at 8:04 p.m.

> Brian Carver Chairman

ATTEST:

Shara Toone Secretary

Approved: _____ As Written